G AUTHORy;.
0\)“ Yo,

Resource Recovery & Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

20000 W. 8 Mile Rd
Southfield, MI 48075-5708

Office: 248.208.2270
www.RRRASOC.org

THE RECYCLING AUTHORITY
Since 1989

uhwn =

0N

Agenda
October 23, 2025
RRRASOC Board of Directors
Regular Meeting
9:30 am
Community Room
Farmington Hills City Hall
31555 W. Eleven Mile Road
Farmington Hills, MI 48336

Call to Order

Roll Call

Approval of Agenda

Audience Participation

Consent Agenda

A. Payment of Bills Report

B. Investment Report

C. Revenue and Expenditure Report

D. MRF Operations Report

E. Minutes of the August 28, 2025 Regular Meeting

Matters for Discussion/Action
A. Audit of FY 2024-2025 RRRASOC Financial Report

B. Discussion with Republic Services

Manager’s Report
Other
Adjournment

RRRASOC Member Communities
Farmington + Farmington Hills + Milford + Milford Township
Novi + South Lyon + Southfield + Walled Lake + Wixom



Check Register Report

Date: 10/14/2025
Time: 6:56 pm
RRRASOC BANK: STANDARD FEDERAL BANK Page: 1
ngnclfer gzteeck Status Reconcile \N/irr]ndl;)err Vendor Name Check Description Amount
STANDARD FEDERAL BANK Checks
14423 08/27/2025 Void 0.00
14424 08/27/2025 Void 0.00
14425 08/27/2025 Void 0.00
14426 08/27/2025 Void 0.00
14427 08/27/2025 Void 0.00
14428 08/27/2025 Void 0.00
14429 08/27/2025 Printed 124 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF September 2025 5,578.19
MICH
14430 08/27/2025 Printed 184 MISSION SQUARE 9/11/25 Payroll-Plan #303663 1,314.39
14431 08/27/2025 Printed 184 MISSION SQUARE 9/25/25 Payroll-Plan #303663 1,314.39
14432 08/27/2025 Printed 148 PHOENIX INNOVATE Flyers 662.00
14433 08/27/2025 Printed 33 SQS, INC. South Lyon batteries 757.65
14434 08/27/2025 Printed 33 SQS, INC. Farmington batteries 600.72
14435 08/27/2025 Printed 130 THE HARTFORD September 2025 576.29
14436 09/16/2025 Printed 124 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF October 2025 5,578.19
MICH
14437 09/16/2025 Printed 6 CASH Petty Cash 200.00
14438 09/16/2025 Printed 429 CHASE Visa 4,059.88
14439 09/16/2025 Printed 140 FIRE ROVER August 2025 161.00
14440 09/16/2025 Printed 137 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL August 2025 15,600.00
14441 09/16/2025 Printed 123 IRIS WASTE DIVERSION August 2025 3,825.00
SPECIAL
14442 09/16/2025 Printed 160 KASTLE SYSTEMS LLC October 2025 1,209.23
14443 09/16/2025 Printed 184 MISSION SQUARE 10/9/25 Payroll-Plan #303663 1,314.39
14444 09/16/2025 Printed 184 MISSION SQUARE 10/23/25 Payroll-Plan #303663 1,314.39
14445 09/16/2025 Printed 4 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC Audit FY 24-25 4,895.00
14446 09/16/2025 Printed 126 SHREDCORP FH Shred Day-9/9/25 825.00
14447 09/16/2025 Printed 33 SQS, INC. August 2025 appts 15,748.00
14448 09/16/2025 Printed 130 THE HARTFORD October 2025 576.29
14449 10/03/2025 Printed 140 FIRE ROVER September 2025 161.00
14450 10/03/2025 Printed 137 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL September 2025 14,820.00
14451 10/03/2025 Printed 172 GLACIER TECHNOLOGY INC. Robot Service Plane 7/25-9/25 4,500.00
14452 10/03/2025 Printed 123 IRIS WASTE DIVERSION September 2025 4,945.20
SPECIAL
14453 10/03/2025 Printed 160 KASTLE SYSTEMS LLC November 2025 1,209.23
14454 10/03/2025 Printed 30 MICHIGAN RECYCLING 12/1/25-11/30/26 Membership 250.00
COALITION
14455 10/03/2025 Printed 126 SHREDCORP Wixom shred day 9/16/25 550.00
14456 10/03/2025 Printed 33 SQS, INC. South Lyon batteries 723.52
14457 10/03/2025 Printed 33 SQS, INC. Farmington batteries 539.94
14458 10/14/2025 Printed 124 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF November 2025 5,578.19
MICH
14459 10/14/2025 Printed 429 CHASE Visa 988.98
14460 10/14/2025 Printed 125 MI MUNICIPAL RISK General Fund Contribution 23,485.00
MANAGEMENT
14461 10/14/2025 Printed 125 MI MUNICIPAL RISK Retention Fund Contribution 7,000.00
MANAGEMENT
14462 10/14/2025 Printed 148 PHOENIX INNOVATE Flyers 1,174.00
14463 10/14/2025 Printed 25 RESOURCE RECYCLING Monthly labor-HH 4,833.94
SYSTEMS, IN
14464 10/14/2025 Printed 33 SQS, INC. September 2025 appointments 15,438.00
14465 10/14/2025 Printed 33 SQS, INC. Novi 2025 HHW event 89,920.00
14466 10/14/2025 Printed 130 THE HARTFORD November 2025 576.29
Total Checks: 44 Checks Total (excluding void checks): 242,803.29
Total Payments: 44 Bank Total (excluding void checks): 242,803.29
Total Payments: 44 Grand Total (excluding void checks): 242,803.29



BANK OF AMERICA %%

P.0. Box 15284
Wilmington, DE 19850

RESOURCE RECOVERY AND RECYCLING

AUTHORITY OF SOUTHWEST OAKLAND COUNTY

20000 W 8 MILE RD
SOUTHFIELD, MI 48075-5708

Your Full Analysis Business Checking

for September 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025

Customer service information

0 Customer service: 1.888.400.9009

Z  bankofamerica.com

= Bank of America, N.A.
P.0. Box 25118
Tampa, FL 33622-5118

Account number:

RESOURCE RECOVERY AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY OF SOUTHWEST OAKLAND COUNTY

Account summary

Beginning balance on September 1, 2025 $54,330.87
Deposits and other credits 291,108.40
Withdrawals and other debits -18,163.16
Checks -61,046.71
Service fees -423.11
Ending balance on September 30, 2025 $265,806.29

# of deposits/credits: 4

# of withdrawals/debits: 24

# of days in cycle: 30

Average ledger balance: $126,216.00

PULL: E CYCLE: 54 SPEC:E DELIVERY:E TYPE: IMAGE:! BC: Ml

Page 1 of 6



S

BANK OF AMERICA %%

P.O. Box 15284
Wilmington, DE 19850

RESOURCE RECOVERY AND RECYCLING
AUTHORITY OF SOUTHWEST OAKLAND COUNTY
20000 W 8 MILE RD

SOUTHFIELD, MI 48075-5708

Your Public Funds Interest Checking

for September 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025

Customer service information

O Customer service: 1.888.400.9009

= bankofamerica.com

=3 Bank of America, N.A.
P.0.Box 25118
Tampa, FL 33622-5118

Account number:

RESOURCE RECOVERY AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY OF SOUTHWEST OAKLAND COUNTY

Account summary

Beginning balance on September 1, 2025 $344,029.94
Deposits and other credits 128.63
Withdrawals and other debits -0.00
Checks -0.00
Service fees -135.08
Ending balance on September 30, 2025 $344,023.49

Annual Percentage Yield Earned this statement period: 0.46%.
Interest Paid Year To Date: $495.91.

# of deposits/credits: 1

# of withdrawals/debits: 1

# of days in cycle: 30

Average ledger balance: $343,962.18

PULL: E CYCLE: 54 SPEC: E DELIVERY:E TYPE: IMAGE:A BC: Ml

Page 1 of 4



I

AKIANDE

COUNT Y MICHIGAN

Oakland County Investment Pool Oakland County Treasury
Position Report - Portrait
Investment

As Of October 3, 2025

~ )
Investment # Managed Pool Accounts (PA4)
P B _ BeginRate 36427420 Current  4.1005331
cusip SYSTEM SYS Rates as of  09/01/2025 Basis 365
Issuer 99999 Pooled Investments Interest Period  ME
Cort/AGets First Interest Due 06/01/2012
S . ChRES [X Add Interest to Account Balance
Custodian ol - R
Asset Class Cash and Equivalents S&P Moody'
Investment Class Book Value [0 Include in Yield Calculation
T T T I 3 Clearing Account
Beginning Balance Date 10/01/2024 — e o i .
Beginning Balance 639,326.09 Market Price 0
Current Balance 564,862.98 MarketPriceDate =~
Last Withdrawal Date 10/01/2025
Deactivate Date Last Deposit Date
Accrued Interest from Previous
Fiscal Year 1,940.75 ~ Comment ) o
. S Current Fiscal Year
Interest Received to 25,775.01
Passbook Transactions
Trans. Dat Deposit Withdrawal Int. Rcvd. Balance Rate Cd Receipt Comments
09/01/2025 0.00 17.26 1,859.02 562,982.32 FI Interest Earnings
09/01/2025 0.00 0.00 0.00 562,982.32 4.101 R Interest Earnings
10/01/2025 0.00 16.76 1,897.42 564,862.98 FI Interest Earnings
Portfolio POOL
CcP
Run Date: 10/03/2025 - 10:49 Page 1 SP (PRF_SPPL) 7.3.11

Report Ver. 7.3.11



REVENUE/EXPENDITURE REPORT

Page: 1
10/13/2025
RRRASOC 11:51 am
For the Period: 7/1/2025 to 9/30/2025 Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual CURR MTH Encumb. YTD UnencBal % Bud
Fund: 596 - GENERAL FUND - ADMINISTRATION
Revenues
580.000 MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS 576,086.00 576,086.00 554,946.00 246,070.00 0.00 21,140.00  96.3
582.000 MEMBER TIP FEE REIMBURSEMENT 350,300.00 350,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350,300.00 0.0
645.000 REVENUE SHARING-RRRASOC 350,300.00 350,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350,300.00 0.0
646.000 REVENUE SHARING-NON RRRASOC 21,500.00 21,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,500.00 0.0
647.000 HOST FEES 150,000.00 150,000.00 19,748.34 19,748.34 0.00 130,251.66 132
664.000 INTEREST INCOME 10,000.00 10,000.00 5,897.01 2,026.05 0.00 410299  59.0
671.000 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 72,548.00 72,548.00 1,234.06 1,234.06 0.00 71,313.94 1.7
Revenues 1,530,734.00 1,530,734.00 581,825.41 269,078.45 0.00 948,908.59  38.0
Expenditures
702.000 SUPERVISORY SALARIES 143,789.00 143,789.00 33,182.10 11,060.70 0.00 110,606.90  23.1
703.000 PERMANENT SALARIES 71,160.00 71,160.00 16,832.06 5473.84 0.00 54,327.94 237
705.000 OVERTIME 7,766.00 7,766.00 2,765.18 0.00 0.00 500082 356
710.000 FICA 19,244.00 19,244.00 4,515.33 1,434.60 0.00 14,72867 235
711.000 MEDICAL/DENTAL INSURANCE 75,094.00 75,094.00 24,617.92 6,154.48 0.00 50,476.08 328
712.000 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 532.00 532.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 532.00 0.0
713.000 WORKERS COMP. 1,100.00 1,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.0
715.000 ICMA 28,838.00 28,838.00 8,872.96 2,218.24 0.00 19,965.04  30.8
727.000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 250.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.0
728.000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,500.00 1,500.00 410.95 351.02 0.00 1,089.05 274
729.000 POSTAGE & MAILING 19,516.00 19,516.00 506.00 506.00 0.00 19,010.00 26
730.000 MAGAZINES & PERIODICALS 160.00 160.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.00 0.0
810.000 AUDIT 18,500.00 18,500.00 19,195.00 4,895.00 0.00 -695.00 103.8
812.000 LEGAL COUNSEL 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.0
821.000 MEMBERSHIP DUES 1,148.00 1,148.00 49312 0.00 0.00 654.88  43.0
822.000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 171,974.00 171,974.00 7,586.85 2,271.76 0.00 164,387.15 44
822.002 DROP-PFF 267,000.00 267,000.00 34,866.92 16,809.23 0.00 232,133.08  13.1
822.003 HHW Wash 0.00 0.00 2,078.37 -7,378.00 0.00 -2,078.37 0.0
822.004 CURBSIDE RECYCLING TIP FEES 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.0
830.000 TELEPHONE 4,980.00 4,980.00 662.58 261.39 0.00 431742 133
831.000 VEHICLE EXPENSE 4,800.00 4,800.00 1,200.00 400.00 0.00 3,600.00 250
835.000 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 9,300.00 9,300.00 3,344.50 3,344.50 0.00 595550  36.0
836.000 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 55,053.00 55,053.00 5,661.50 2,714.75 0.00 49,391.50 103
840.000 BUILDINGI/LIAB. INS. 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0
850.000 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 30,500.00 30,500.00 270.00 0.00 0.00 30,230.00 0.9
851.000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
860.000 CONFERENCES & WORKSHOPS 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
890.000 MILEAGE EXPENSES 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0
970.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 45,000.00 45,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 0.0
975.000 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 2,234.00 2,234.00 521.82 200.97 0.00 171218 234
978.000 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
979.000 CONTINGENCY 5,804.00 5,804.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,804.00 0.0
Expenditures 1,053,242.00 1,053,242.00 167,583.16 50,718.48 0.00 885,658.84  15.9
Net Effect for GENERAL FUND - ADMINISTRATION 477,492.00 477,492.00 414,242.25 218,359.97 0.00 6324975  86.8
Change in Fund Balance: 414,242.25
Grand Total Net Effect: 477,492.00 477,492.00 414,242.25 218,359.97 0.00 63,249.75



MRF Throughput

Source: Farmington

Jan-25
Feb-25
Mar-25
Apr-25
May-25
Jun-25
Jul-25
Aug-25
Sep-25
Oct-25
Nov-25
Dec-25
Total
Average

59.48
35.84

467.77
51.97

Farmington Hills
369.94
303.58
338.68
383.32
428.82
395.37
414.34
366.29
364.16

3,364.50
373.83

MRF Operations Report

Village of Milford  Milford Twp Novi NoviDO  South Lyon Southfield Southfield DO Walled Lake Wixom
38.60 48.38 242.36 45.53 44.33 164.08 27.07 21.24 45.82
31.15 32.35 192.00 39.84 50.38 142.68 775 15.15 45.22
28.36 32.07 227.87 47.56 43.51 159.73 13.84 13.47 49.10
41.17 33.56 276.95 41.91 52.94 154.53 13.28 18.15 67.82
43.11 57.15 289.29 46.37 40.97 190.42 12.48 15.67 56.77
35.92 46.20 253.85 50.49 54.32 168.39 14.45 4.28 50.29
40.34 71.98 250.05 43.36 64.84 193.45 13.41 20.64 58.02
34.44 29.78 252.61 46.93 40.56 181.38 12.00 15.78 50.95
33.67 23.09 236.37 41.12 57.72 189.80 12.14 20.45 48.83

326.76 374.56 2,221.35 403.11 449.57 1,544.46 126.42 144.83 472.82
36.31 41.62 246.82 44.79 49.95 171.61 14.05 16.09 52.54
Commodity Value History
$200.00
$180.00
$160.00 I
$140.00
$120.00 1
s / \
= $100.00 ¥
]
£ |
$80.00 "\‘v I/ l
$60.00 \ [\/ unu
$40.00 WA“
$20.00
s
88832733933 339893359333883+33838333%
6368323633838 262368382836388&826858238203

—Average Commodity Revenue

—Target Price

RRRASOC Total

1,106.83
895.94

1,006.66
1,137.57
1,240.96
1,127.09
1,230.76
1,079.53
1,070.81

9,896.15
1,099.57

Third Party
3,376.71
3,285.71
3,558.91
3,954.15
4,399.26
2,980.19
3,853.53
3,516.51
3,353.66

32,278.63
3,586.51

Total

4,483.54
4,181.65
4,565.57
5,091.72
5,640.22
4,107.28
5,084.29
4,596.04
4,424 .47

42,174.78
4,686.09

RRRASOC %
24.7%
21.4%
22.0%
22.3%
22.0%
27.4%
24.2%
23.5%
24.2%

23.5%
23.5%



G AUTHORy;.
0\)\*\ YO

Resource Recovery & Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

20000 W. 8 Mile Rd
Southfield, MI 48075-5708

Office: 248.208.2270
www.RRRASOC.org

THE RECYCLING AUTHORITY
Since 1989

Minutes of August 28, 2025
RRRASOC Board of Directors
Regular Meeting
9:30 a.m.
Farmington Hills City Hall
Community Room
31555 W. Eleven Mile Road, Farmington Hills, Ml 48336

1. Call to Order

Mr. Mekjian called the meeting to order at 9:40 a.m.

2. Roll Call

Gary Mekjian Chairperson, Farmington Hills
Steve Brown Vice Chairperson, Wixom
Chelsea Pesta Treasurer, Walled Lake
Fred Zorn Secretary, Southfield
Derrick Schueller Farmington Hills

Jacob Rushlow Farmington Hills

Matt Best Milford Township
Christian Wuerth Milford Village

Megan Mikus Novi

Michael Csapo RRRASOC

Laura Shaw RRRASOC

3. Approval of Agenda

Mr. Zorn moved to approve the agenda. Mr. Wuerth supported, and the motion passed
unanimously by the Board.

4. Audience Participation
None.

5. Consent Agenda

Payment of Bills

Investment Report

Revenue and Expenditure Report
Diversion Rate Report

MRF Operations Report

Minutes of June 26, 2025 Regular Meeting

Tmoow>

RRRASOC Member Communities
Farmington + Farmington Hills + Milford + Milford Township
Novi + South Lyon + Southfield + Walled Lake + Wixom



2

Mr. Wuerth moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Mr. Zorn supported, and the motion
passed unanimously by the Board.

Matters for Discussion/Action
A. Disaster Debris Monitoring RFP responses

Mr. Csapo explained the responses of the Disaster Debris Monitoring RFP. Mr. Csapo
informed the Board that Oakland County will be the contract holder with each
municipality having an inter-agency agreement.

Mr. Wuerth made a motion to approve entering into an Agreement with Tetra Tech for
Debris Monitoring Services with Oakland County as the lead agency unless Oakland
County declines, in which case, RRRASOC will enter into an agreement on behalf of its
Member Communities. Mr. Zorn supported, and the motion passed unanimously by the
Board.

B. Disaster Debris Clearance and Removal RFP Responses

Mr. Csapo informed the Board of the results of the Disaster Debris Clearance and
Removal RFP.

Mr. Brown made a motion to enter into an Agreement with DRC Emergency Services as
the Primary, with Ashbritt, Inc. and CrowderGulf as Secondaries, and Ceres
Environmental as backup, for Debris Clearance and Removal Services, with Oakland
County as the lead agency unless Oakland County declines, in which case, RRRASOC
will enter into an agreement on behalf of its Member Communities. Mr. Wuerth
supported, and the motion passed unanimously by the Board.

C. ACH Policy

Mr. Csapo explained to the Board that the auditors requested that RRRASOC have a
formal ACH Policy on file.

Mr. Wuerth made a motion to adopt the ACH policy. Mr. Brown supported, and the
motion passed unanimously by the Board.

D. Solid Waste Expenditure Benchmark Study
Mr. Csapo gave the Board a history of the Solid Waste Expenditure Benchmark Study
and explained how the study is developed through budget information for each

municipality.

Mr. Wuerth made a motion to accept the Solid Waste Expenditure Benchmark Study
2025. Mr. Zorn supported, and the motion passed unanimously by the Board.

Manager’s Report

No comment.



8. Other
No comment.
9. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 10:44 a.m.



G AUTHORy;.
0\)\*\ YO

Resource Recovery & Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

20000 W. 8 Mile Rd
Southfield, MI 48075-5708

Office: 248.208.2270
www.RRRASOC.org

THE RECYCLING AUTHORITY
Since 1989

To: RRRASOC Board of Directors

From: Mike Csapo, General Manager

Date: October 13, 2025

Re: Audit of the RRRASOC FY 2024 - 2025 Financial Report

Action Requested
Accept the FY 2024 - 2025 Financial Report for filing with the appropriate agencies.

Overview

Attached is a copy of the RRRASOC Financial Report for the period ending June 30, 2025, as
audited by Plante & Moran, LLP. | believe you will find that the financial statements and
accompanying audit letter indicate that RRRASOC conducted its financial affairs in conformity
with generally accepted account principles.

The year ended with total revenue being $14,896 more than the budgeted amount, due largely
to host fees, material revenue, and grant revenue exceeding expectations.

Total expenditures ended the year $125,170 less than the budgeted amount, primarily due to
less than expected expenditures in contractual services and capital outlay for equipment repair.

Representatives of Plante & Moran, LLP, will present an overview of the audit and be available
to answer any questions you may have.

Recommendation
Accept the FY 2024 - 2025 Financial Report for filing with the appropriate agencies.

Please let me know if you have any comments or questions.

RRRASOC Member Communities
Farmington + Farmington Hills + Milford + Milford Township
Novi + South Lyon + Southfield + Walled Lake + Wixom



Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante 7 oo

3000 Town Center, Suite 100
Southfield, MI 48075

moran Tel: 248.352.2500

Fax: 248.352.0018
plantemoran.com

August 20, 2025

To the Board of Directors
Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

We have audited the financial statements of the Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest
Oakland County (RRRASOC or the “Authority”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025 and have issued
our report thereon dated August 20, 2025. Professional standards require that we provide you with the
following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 3, 2025, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your
responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Authority. Such considerations were solely for
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control.

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our
meeting about planning matters on July 8, 2025.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the Authority are described in
Note 1 to the financial statements.

The Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, effective July 1, 2024, which
addresses how governmental entities record accrued sick, vacation, personal, and other compensated
time. The changes were immaterial to the financial statements as a whole, and, thus, retrospective
accounting changes were not made to the financial statements.

We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

We noted no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different
period than when the transaction occurred.


Conner.Matteson
Southfield

Conner.Matteson
Praxity


To the Board of Directors August 20, 2025
Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected. There were no significant balances, amounts, or disclosures in the financial
statements based on sensitive management estimates.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in performing and completing our audit.
Disagreements with Management

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We
did not detect any misstatements as a result of audit procedures.

Significant Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, business conditions affecting the Authority, and business plans and strategies that may affect
the risks of material misstatement, with management each year prior to our retention as the Authority’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and
our responses were not a condition of our retention.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated August 20, 2025.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Recommendations

While gaining an understanding of the internal controls related to cash, it was identified that external
transfers do not require dual authorization. Although there are a limited number of external transfers and a
system of detective controls in place related to banking activity review and bank reconciliations, we
recommend establishing dual authorization requirements for all ACH payments and wire transfers.



To the Board of Directors August 20, 2025
Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Authority’s staff for the cooperation and courtesy
extended to us during our audit. Their assistance and professionalism are invaluable.

Very truly yours,
Plante & Moran, PLLC

Kok Sypymonsh;

Keith Szymanski, CPA



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of
Southwest Oakland County

Financial Report
with Supplementary Information
June 30, 2025



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Contents

Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Management's Discussion and Analysis 3-5
Basic Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position/Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 6

Statement of Activities/Governmental Fund Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance 7

Notes to Financial Statements 8-14
Required Supplementary Information 15

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Administrative Fund 16

Note to Required Supplementary Information



Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante 7 box o0

3000 Town Center, Suite 100
Southfield, MI 48075

Mmorar T o405 0500
Fax: 248.352.0018

plantemoran.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the General Administrative Fund and the governmental activities
(modified accrual and full accrual columns, respectively) of the Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of
Southwest Oakland County (the "Authority") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025 and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the General Administrative Fund and the governmental activities of the Authority
as of June 30, 2025 and the respective changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going
concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



To the Board of Directors
Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedule, as identified in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

7%-«& f 77(44,4«0, PLLL

August 20, 2025



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County's
(RRRASOC or the "Authority") financial performance provides an overview of the Authority's financial activities for
the year ended June 30, 2025. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement of
activities provide information about the activities of the Authority as a whole and present a longer-term view of the
Authority’s finances. This longer-term view uses the accrual basis of accounting so that it can measure the cost of
providing services during the current year and whether the member communities have funded the full cost of
providing waste management services.

The fund financial statements present a short-term view; they tell the member communities how the resources
were spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending.

The Authority as a Whole

Governmental Activities

2023 2024 2025 Change Percent Change
Assets
Current and other assets $ 1,171,280 $ 934,081 $ 820,878 $ (113,203) (12.1)
Capital assets 6,873,313 7,136,619 6,893,985 (242,634) (3.4)
Total assets 8,044,593 8,070,700 7,714,863 (355,837) (4.4)
Liabilities
Current liabilities 34,668 40,183 58,140 17,957 447
Noncurrent liabilities 74,103 85,284 91,001 5,717 6.7
Total liabilities 108,771 125,467 149,141 23,674 18.9
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 6,873,313 7,136,619 6,893,985 (242,634) (3.4)
Unrestricted 1,062,509 808,614 671,737 (136,877) (16.9)
Total net position $ 7,935,822 $ 7,945,233 $ 7,565,722 $ (379,511) (4.8)

The Authority's total net position decreased by approximately 4.8 percent from a year ago from $7,945,233 to
$7,565,722. Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations,
decreased by $136,877 for the governmental activities. The decrease was primarily due to decreased revenue
from capital grants and other sources.



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Authority's Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities

2023 2024 2025 Change Percent Change
Revenue
Member contributions $ 360,054 $ 388,858 $ 403,260 $ 14,402 3.7
Host fees 177,805 191,607 254,439 62,832 32.8
MRF revenue sharing 59,532 34,767 55,843 21,076 60.6
Other revenue:
Grants and other 96,484 587,802 143,190 (444,612) (75.6)
Interest income 9,071 13,173 24,031 10,858 824
Total revenue 702,946 1,216,207 880,763 (335,444) (27.6)
Expenses
Printing and publishing 48,498 55,913 54,673 (1,240) (2.2)
Postage and mailing 16,447 18,659 18,016 (643) (3.4)
Utilities 6,523 5,410 4,962 (448) (8.3)
Salaries and benefits 308,431 330,203 346,606 16,403 5.0
Supplies 870 1,482 652 (830) (56.0)
Professional services 161,463 218,382 172,691 (45,691) (20.9)
Drop-off expenses 181,613 179,823 229,919 50,096 27.9
Training and travel 849 1,961 2,732 771 39.3
Other operating expenses 60,397 62,075 65,697 3,622 5.8
Capital outlay 2,413 - - - -
Depreciation 292,818 332,888 364,326 31,438 9.4
Total expenses 1,080,322 1,206,796 1,260,274 53,478 4.4
Net Change in Net Position (377,376) 9,411 (379,511) (388,922) (4,132.6)
Net Position - Beginning of year 8,313,198 7,935,822 7,945,233 9,411 0.1
Net Position - End of year $ 7,935,822 $ 7,945,233 $ 7,565,722 $ (379,511) (4.8)

The Material Recovery Facility (MRF) revenue-sharing receipts of $55,843 increased as a result of fluctuating
pricing in the commodities market. Traditionally, those values have tended to fluctuate significantly due to market
forces and, in general, cannot be depended upon for future revenue levels. Revenue from host fees increased by
$62,832 due to an increase in capacity utilization by the Authority's MRF contractor. Grants and other income
decreased by $444,612 from the prior year due to the large infrastructure/capital grants being received in the prior
year.

General Administrative Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year, the budget was amended to reflect expected changes in revenue sharing, host fees, and grant-
funded activities, as well as activities carried over from the prior fiscal year. Overall, the Authority’s expenditures
remained below budgeted amounts. The Authority's fund balance continues to be closely monitored, as it fell due
to reduced cash flow during the period following the 2014 fire at the MRF. The assigned capital fund balance
health is of vital importance, as critical investment in increased automation will likely be necessary to ensure that
the MRF continues to provide cost-effective recycling processing for the Authority's members.

Capital Assets Administration

As described in Note 5, at the end of 2025, the Authority had $6,893,985 invested in capital assets (net of
depreciation), including land, building, and office furnishings and fixtures. Of this amount, $1,550,000 relates to
land.



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

Commodity prices remain volatile, with global and domestic uncertainty having a continued presence. Prices
rebounded significantly during the second half of the fiscal year, and pricing consistent with historical norms is
expected to continue into the first quarter of fiscal year 2025-2026, with less certainty for second, third, and fourth
quarters.

Requests for Further Information

This financial report is intended to provide our member communities with a general overview of the Authority’s
finances and demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives from the member communities.
If you have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact the Authority’s
office.



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Statement of Net Position/Governmental Fund Balance Sheet

June 30, 2025

Accrual Statement of
Balance Sheet-  Adjustments Net Position -
Modified Accrual (Note 2) Full Accrual
Assets
Cash and investments (Note 4) $ 712,280 $ - $ 712,280
Receivables 95,740 - 95,740
Prepaid expenses and other assets 12,858 - 12,858
Capital assets:
Assets not subject to depreciation (Note 5) - 1,550,000 1,550,000
Assets subject to depreciation - Net (Note 5) - 5,343,985 5,343,985
Total assets $ 820,878 6,893,985 7,714,863
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 49,658 - 49,658
Accrued liabilities and other 8,482 - 8,482
Compensated absences:
Due within one year - 23,145 23,145
Due in more than one year - 67,856 67,856
Total liabilities 58,140 91,001 149,141
Equity
Fund balance:
Nonspendable 12,858 (12,858) -
Unassigned 749,880 (749,880) -
Total fund balance 762,738 (762,738) -
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 820,878
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,893,985 6,893,985
Unrestricted 671,737 671,737
7,565,722 $ 7,565,722

Total net position

See notes to financial statements.




Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Statement of Activities/Governmental Fund Revenue, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Statement of

Revenue,
Expenditures,
and Changes in Accrual Statement of
Fund Balance -  Adjustments Activities - Full
Modified Accrual (Note 2) Accrual
Revenue
Member contributions $ 403,260 $ - $ 403,260
Host fees 254,439 - 254,439
MRF revenue sharing 55,843 - 55,843
Other revenue:
Grants and other 143,190 - 143,190
Interest income 24,031 - 24,031
Total revenue 880,763 - 880,763
Expenditures/Expenses
Printing and publishing 54,673 - 54,673
Postage and mailing 18,016 - 18,016
Utilities 4,962 - 4,962
Salaries and benefits 340,889 5,717 346,606
Supplies 652 - 652
Professional services 172,691 - 172,691
Drop-off expenses 229,919 - 229,919
Training and travel 2,732 - 2,732
Other operating expenses 65,697 - 65,697
Capital outlay 121,692 (121,692) -
Depreciation - 364,326 364,326
Total expenditures/expenses 1,011,923 248,351 1,260,274
Net Change in Fund Balance/Net Position (131,160) (248,351) (379,511)
Fund Balance/Net Position - Beginning of year 893,898 7,051,335 7,945,233

Fund Balance/Net Position - End of year $ 762,738 $ 6,802,984 $ 7,565,722

See notes to financial statements. 7



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

The Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County (the "Authority") is a
municipal authority and body corporate, incorporated by the cities of Farmington, Farmington Hills, Novi,
South Lyon, Southfield, Walled Lake, and Wixom, Michigan; the Village of Milford, Michigan; and the
Charter Township of Milford, and was created pursuant to Act 179, Michigan Public Acts of 1947, as
amended. Currently, the Authority is engaged in assisting the communities in the coordination of their
solid waste management activities. Its ultimate purpose is the collection and disposal of rubbish and
acquisition and operation of a waste management system.

Accounting and Reporting Principles

The Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County conforms to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applicable to governmental
units. The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the Resource Recovery
and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County:

Modified Accrual and Full Accrual Data

The Authority consists of a single fund, which is presented in these financial statements on both the
modified accrual basis and full accrual basis. The modified accrual column represents the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is
recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available if it is
collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the Authority considers revenue to be available if it is collected within 45 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, expenditures relating to compensated
absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due.

The full accrual column represents the total economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual
basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Specific Balances and Transactions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with a
maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are stated at fair value.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land and building for the Material Recovery Facility (MRF) site, machinery
and equipment, and office furniture and fixtures, are reported in the full accrual column. Capital assets
are defined by the Authority as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition cost at the date
of donation.



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Depreciable Life -

Years
Land (MRF site) Not depreciated
Building 50
Machinery and equipment 5-15
Office furniture and fixtures 3-10

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a
consumption of net assets that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Authority has no items that qualify for reporting in this
category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents
an acquisition of net assets that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority has no items that qualify for reporting in this category.

Net Position

Net position of the Authority is classified in two components: (1) net investment in capital assets consists
of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and is reduced by the current balances of any
outstanding borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets, and (2) unrestricted
net position is the remaining net position that does not meet the definition of invested in capital assets.

Net Position Flow Assumption

The Authority will sometimes fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
Authority’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position
is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

The Authority will sometimes fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental
fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been
depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Furthermore, when the
components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish
limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an
assignment (assigned fund balance).

Nonspendable: Amounts that are not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact

Restricted: Amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation for use for a specific purpose

Committed: Amounts that have been formally set aside by the board for use for specific purposes.
Commitments are made and can be rescinded only via resolution of the board of directors.

Assigned: Intent to spend resources on specific purposes expressed by the governing body

Unassigned: Amounts that do not fall into any other category above. This is the residual classification for
amounts in the General Administrative Fund and represents fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes in the General Administrative Fund.

Member Contributions

The Authority receives contributions from members based on a per capita charge and the most recent
census.

Host Fees

The Authority receives host fees in accordance with pricing arrangements stipulated in the MRF operation
agreement with the MRF operator. Revenue is calculated based on the incoming volume of material
collected outside of the Authority's programs.

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave)

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and vacation pay
benefits. A leave liability is recognized due to the leave attributable to services already rendered, leave
that accumulates, and leave that is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash
or settled through noncash means.

As of June 30, 2025, there was $91,001 of accrued compensated absences, of which $23,145 was
deemed a current liability. Activity during the year consisted of $29,973 of reductions to the liability and
$38,060 of additional earned accrued compensated absences.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

10



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2024, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 103, Financial
Reporting Model Improvements, which establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements
or modifies existing requirements related to the following: management's discussion and analysis;
unusual or infrequent items; presentation of the proprietary fund statement of revenue, expenses, and
changes in fund net position; information about major component units in basic financial statements;
budgetary comparison information; and financial trends information in the statistical section. The
provisions of this statement are effective for the Authority's financial statements for the year ending June
30, 2026.

In September 2024, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 104,
Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, which requires certain types of capital assets, such as lease assets,
intangible right-to-use assets, subscription assets, and other intangible assets, to be disclosed separately
by major class of underlying asset in the capital assets note. This statement also requires additional
disclosures for capital assets held for sale. The provisions of this statement are effective for the
Authority's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2026.

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Individual Fund Column of the Statement of Net
Position/Statement of Activities

Net position reported in the statement of net position column is different than the fund balance reported in
the individual fund column because of the different measurement focus and basis of accounting, as
discussed in Note 1. Below is a reconciliation of the differences:

Fund Balance Reported in Governmental Fund $ 762,738

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and are not reported in the funds 6,893,985

Employee compensated absences are payable over a long period of years
and do not represent a claim on current financial resources; therefore,
they are not reported as fund liabilities (91,001)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 7,565,722

11



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Individual Fund Column of the Statement of Net
Position/Statement of Activities (Continued)

The change in net position reported in the full accrual column is different than the change in fund balance
reported in the individual fund column because of the different measurements focus and basis of
accounting, as discussed in Note 1. Below is a reconciliation of the differences:

Net Change in Fund Balance Reported in Governmental Fund $ (131,160)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the full accrual column are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in
the full accrual column, these costs are allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation:
Depreciation expense (364,326)
Capital outlay 121,692

Some employee costs (compensated absences) do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds (5,717)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (379,511)

Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and
state law. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. The budget is prepared by the general
manager and approved by the board of directors. The budget document presents information by fund and
line items. The legal level of budgetary control adopted by the governing body (i.e., the level at which
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the line item level. State law requires the Authority
to have its budget in place by July 1. Expenditures in excess of amounts budgeted are a violation of
Michigan law. State law permits entities to amend their budgets during the year. During the year, the
budget was amended in a legally permissible manner. Budget appropriations are considered to be spent
once the goods are delivered or the services rendered.

Note 4 - Deposits and Investments

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions,
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The law also allows investments outside
the state of Michigan when fully insured. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other
direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase
agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two
highest classifications that matures no more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the
State of Michigan or its political subdivisions that are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds
composed of investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of government in
Michigan.

The Authority has designated two banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy adopted by the
board in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment in bonds and securities of the
United States government and bank accounts and CDs but not the remainder of state statutory authority,
as listed above. The Authority's investments comply with all required laws and regulations.

12



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

Note 4 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The Authority's cash and investments are subject to various types of risk, which are examined in more
detail below:

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be
returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the
Authority had no bank deposits (checking and savings accounts) that were uninsured and
uncollateralized.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in interest
rates. In accordance with its investment policy, the Authority manages its exposure to declines in fair
value by limiting the weighted-average maturity of its investment portfolio to a range of 90 days to 3
years. The Authority's investment policy does not restrict investment maturities other than commercial
paper, which can only be purchased with a 270-day maturity. As of year end, the Authority held $559,248
invested in an investment pool with a weighted-average maturity of 0.99 years.

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations. The Authority has no investment policy that would further limit its
investment choices. As of year end, the Authority held $559,248 in an investment pool that was not rated.

Fair Value Measurements

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets,
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs. Investments that are measured at fair value using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as
a practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below.

In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the valuation. The Authority’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair
value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset.

Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value per Share

The Authority holds shares or interests in an investment pool wherein the fair value of the investments is
measured on a recurring basis using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) of the investment
companies as a practical expedient.

At June 30, 2025, the fair value, unfunded commitments, and redemption rules of those investments are

as follows:
Redemption
Unfunded Frequency, if Redemption
Carrying Value  Commitments Eligible Notice Period
Oakland County Local Government
Investment Pool $ 559,248 $ - Norestrictions  None

The LGIP invests assets in a manner that will seek the highest investment return consistent with the
preservation of principal and meet the daily liquidity needs of participants.

13



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

Note 4 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The Oakland County Local Government Investment Pool is not registered with the SEC and does not
issue a separate report. The pool does not meet the requirements under GASB 79 to report its value for
financial reporting purposes at amortized costs. Accordingly, the investment is reported at fair value. The
fair value of the position in the pool is not the same as the value of the pool shares because the pool
redeems shares at $1 per share regardless of current fair value.

Note 5 - Capital Assets
Capital asset activity of the Authority was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Balance Disposals and Balance
July 1, 2024 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2025
Capital assets not being
depreciated - Land (MRF site) $ 1,550,000 $ - $ - % 1,550,000
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building 4,374,813 - - 4,374,813
Machinery and equipment 3,614,505 121,692 - 3,736,197
Office furniture and fixtures 18,933 - - 18,933
Subtotal 8,008,251 121,692 - 8,129,943
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 783,218 87,496 - 870,714
Machinery and equipment 1,620,450 276,390 - 1,896,840
Office furniture and fixtures 17,964 440 - 18,404
Subtotal 2,421,632 364,326 - 2,785,958
Net capital assets being
depreciated 5,586,619 (242,634) - 5,343,985
Net governmental activities
capital assets $ 7,136,619 $ (242,634) $ - % 6,893,985

Upon termination of the MRF operations agreement with Republic Services, ownership of any fixed
equipment installed by Republic Services will be transferred to the Authority. The Authority will record the
facility at its fair value, if any, at the time of transfer (the original cost of the Republic Services-owned
equipment installed during fiscal year 2015-2016 was approximately $6.5 million).

Note 6 - Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, and
employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The
Authority has purchased commercial insurance for medical benefits, workers' compensation, and general
liability claims. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 7 - Retirement Plan

The Authority provides a deferred compensation plan for employees. The employee manual provides for
the Authority to make contributions equal to 5 percent of each employee's salary. The Authority also
makes discretionary contributions. Contributions to the plan amounted to $28,917 for the year ended
June 30, 2025.

14



Required Supplementary Information

15



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Administrative Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Variance with

Original Budget ~ Amended Budget Actual Amended Budget
Revenue
Member contributions $ 403,260 $ 403,260 $ 403,260 $ -
Host fees 240,000 248,000 254,439 6,439
MRF revenue sharing:
Curbside 32,285 51,166 52,632 1,466
Drop-off 2,175 3,121 3,211 90
Other revenue:
Grants and other 175,425 137,320 143,190 5,870
Interest income 23,000 23,000 24,031 1 ,031
Total revenue 876,145 865,867 880,763 14,896
Expenditures
Printing and publishing 55,053 55,053 54,673 (380)
Postage and mailing 19,516 19,516 18,016 (1,500)
Utilities 4,980 4,980 4,962 (18)
Salaries and benefits:
Supervisory salaries 138,926 142,049 142,048 (1)
Permanent salaries 68,754 70,263 70,262 (1)
Overtime/Bonus/Longevity 7,672 7,672 7,672 -
FICA 18,629 19,283 19,283 -
Medical and dental insurance 71,519 71,519 71,469 (50)
Unemployment insurance 505 505 270 (235)
Workers' compensation 952 968 968 -
ICMA contribution 27,658 28,917 28,917 -
Supplies:
Operating supplies 250 250 - (250)
Office supplies 1,500 1,500 652 (848)
Professional services:
Consulting services - Legal 4,000 4,000 - (4,000)
Contractual services 171,479 171,479 154,511 (16,968)
Audit 18,180 18,180 18,180 -
Drop-off expenses:
Contractual services - Drop-off 201,500 201,500 195,269 (6,231)
Contractual services - Household hazardous waste 37,300 37,300 34,650 (2,650)
Training and travel:
Conferences and workshops 500 500 - (500)
Expenses and mileage 2,500 3,500 2,732 (768)
Other operating expenses:
Magazines and periodicals 160 160 135 (25)
Membership dues 1,148 1,148 1,148 -
Vehicle allowance 4,800 4,800 4,800 -
Community relations 9,300 9,300 7,512 (1,788)
Building/Liability insurance 21,599 21,599 21,599 -
Equipment maintenance 30,500 30,500 28,195 (2,305)
Building and grounds maintenance 500 500 - (500)
Computer software 2,234 2,310 2,308 (2)
Office equipment 500 500 - (500)
Contingency 5,000 3,742 - (3,742)
Capital outlay 203,600 203,600 121,692 (81,908)
Total expenditures 1,130,714 1,137,093 1,011,923 (125,170)
Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (254,569) (271,226) (131,160) 140,066
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 893,898 893,898 893,898 -
$ 639,329 $ 622,672 $ 762,738 $ 140,066

Fund Balance - End of year

See note to required supplementary information. 16



Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County

Note to Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2025
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgeted Fund

During the year, the Authority's General Administrative Fund did not incur any expenditures in excess of the
budget.

17



& AUTHOR,
<:'\,\v\ Ty O

Resource Recovery & Recycling Authority
of Southwest Oakland County

20000 W. 8 Mile Rd
Southfield, MI 48075-5708

Office: 248.208.2270
www.RRRASOC.org

THE RECYCLING AUTHORITY
Since 1989

To: RRRASOC Board of Directors
From: Michael Csapo, General Manager
Date: October 16, 2025

Re: Manager’s Report

1. Work on Food Waste Reduction and Organics composting continued. A pilot project
for the Farmington Pavilion was approved by the Farmington City Council.

2. Discussions were held with Republic Services regarding the MRF performance.
See agenda.

3. Work on various legislative, policy, and permitting matters continued.
4. The Fall HHW event schedule began. The next event is October 25 in Southfield.
5. The pre-proposal meeting pertaining to the South Lyon RFP was held.

6. Staff attended or presented at the following:

Milford Open House.

Oakland County MMPC meeting.

South Lyon pre-proposal meeting.

Genesee County MMPC meeting.
Farmington Hills Open House.

HHW event in Novi.

. Farmington City Council meeting.

Michigan EGLE Catalyst Community webinar.
EGLE Recycling Specialists meeting.

TIETMMOOm>

RRRASOC Member Communities
Farmington + Farmington Hills + Milford + Milford Township
Novi + South Lyon + Southfield + Walled Lake + Wixom



